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ABSTRACT

The 1and, part town section 168, was purchased by the

trustees of the Free Church of Scotland in August 1854 from
- Rev. Charles Ibbotson of Yorkshlre, for £200.
“The flrst church opened in 1856 was demolished. in 1875

4o make wey for a 1arger structure, destroyed by fire in
”1884. _ :
-The other half of the sectlon was bought from William
fSplnks in 1884, for £1, 500, to accommodate a larger church._
Spinks' cottage was moved back, and Stll¢ stands. ;

'The present church was dedlcated on 11 December, ﬂ885.
Avrchitect: Thomas Turnbull, Builder: James Wilson.
Contract Price: £5,469, Described as "Decorativé-Gothic"'
Built of kauri supplled by Greenfleld and Stewart S sawmlll,
Courtenay Places Co
' & second entrance was added, probably in 1904, at the
requeat of the Wellington Clty Council.  Cost £200 applox-.
imately. In 1920 and 1922 memorial windows were added in
the southern and northern ends of the church respectively.

| In 1853 a memoriél borch was added to commemorate the
centennial of the church. Architect, Malcolm Bennie. _
Builder, Webb and Cree. Cost'ﬁﬂ,582,13aln 1965 a'windbw_'
depicting a carpenter at work was added to the vestibule.
This was the Hartin Memorial. |

| 57'Pip1't.ea Street, Weilington 1, New Zealand



ST JOHN'S_CHURCH, WILLIS STREET, WELLINGTON,

The first Presbyterians in Wellington worshipped at St
- Andrews, then in Lambton GQuay. There is evidence of early
dissension between some of the members of the congregation'
and'their'MiniSter; Reverend,MacFarlane.- The dissension
increased in 1848 and 1849 with the arrival of Presbyterians
from Dunedin who belonged not Lo the Church. of Scotland but
to the Free Church of Scotland.q By 1851 there were enough
dissenting members to ask for a minister from the Free Church.
. In 1851, sixty-nine persons signed a statement to the=
- Free Cﬁurch of Scotland asking Tor a minister to be sent to
Wellington. He was Rev. John Moir, The session minutes
in his hendwriting beginning 1854 nbte that he arrived in
Wellingtbn”on 3.11.1853 and preached his first sermen. in the
Atheneum Hall%. ~1n May, 1854 he recorded the names of the
first elders elected - Mltchell Blythe, Lyon, lMcDonald, Wallace_
and Michael Guin. '

- In August, 1854 a plot of land, described as "part town
-Sectlon 168" was purchased from the Rev. Charles Ibbotson, -
_Yorkshlre, through his New. Zealand agent, C.E. Von Alzdorf,
for a. sum of £200. 5 The other half of the section was-
.purchased by Wllliam Splnks who bullt a cottage on his-
_property. | \ | |

R church to accommodate two - h.undred4 was opened on 3’.8 56
Within ten years it was too small anu was twice enlarged in
1866 and 1871 2. By 1875, the cpngregatlon had decided that .
the first church should be demolished and a new one to seat
600 built on‘ﬁhe_site.' The foundation stone of the second
- church was laid by the Marquis of Normany on 20.6.1875, To
finance the building;.the trustees and Managers of the church-
took out a Mortgage of £1,500 at 8% with John James Williamson
'of Obariu.® The architect of the second church. was Thomas
. Turnbull and the builders, Murdoch and Rose. A'Ménagemeht
_Commlttee report in 1875 states that "The Church was built of
good materials and the work well executed. n?

On 9.5.1884, the second church and schoolroom were
'destroyed_by'fireo A stirring account of the fire was given
in the Evening Post on the same date.g. Described as the most -
disastrous fire since that which. destroyed the Opera House
in Manners Street, the only effects saved were the Americanm
'organ, the . hymn books and notice bpards. © The church_was
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insured for £3, OOO and the schoolroom for £500 w1th the
Northern Insurance Co. According to rumour, before the
embers had cooled, James Smith, a draper and elder, was
running among the crowd of 2,000 onlookers with his bowler
- hat held out, soliciting contributions for a new church

: bulldlng.9 ' | '

To accommodate a larger church and schoolroom it was
decided to purchase from William Spinks the other half
of the section at a price of £1,500.  The original Spinks
cottage which still stands, was shifted back and put to.

use as a residence for the Church caretaker.10_ o

By the time the foundation for the third church was
laid on 14.5.1885 by the Chief Justice, Sir JameS-Preﬁdergast,~
James Smith on behalf of the Finance committee was able %o - |
_'announce that 55 140 had been ‘promised or paid towards the-
_'copt of the new church.-'1 The cost of the building was £5, 469.

The architect was Thomas Turnbull, ‘architect of the General
 Assembly Library and the builder, James Wllson. The kauri

- used in its construction was supplied by Greenfield and Stewart‘
sawnill, Courtenay Place. (James Wilson and Greenfield were '
- both promlnent members of St John's.) The church was descrlﬁed
‘at the time as 'decoratlve Gothlc'qg' The'gothic appearance -
of the orlglnal top parts of the Wlndows are similar to those

in the General. Assembly Library.

- In December, 1885, an organ was ‘donated by James Smithe
'It was built by lMessrs Lewis & Co. of London. James Smith's
' son, A.P. Smith, left a 1egacy of £3,000 for its restoration
in 1949, and the original organ is still in use although
. substantial repair work was carried out in 1950. :

By 1899, more land was needed to extend the Sunday School
facilities in McBonald rescent..' ﬁegetlatlons were enterﬁd
into with the Hnnter famlly te purchase land in thls area.

A minute in the Manager s Book for September 1899 13 refers

to the land as "1 rood, 12 perches which is at present over-run
by fowls and is a rubbish dump." - The asking price was £600.

. Negotiations dragged on until February 1901 when the land was
finally purchased for 'a reasonable sum', iy and a letbter
sent to Mr Hunbter accepting his offer. - Meanwhile Thomas
Turnbull had been instructed to préparé_plansﬁfor the schoolroo
and additions (19,10.4900) and the new rooms were .opened in 1190



. 3, | |
In May 1901 the builder, James Wilson was asked to
 repair the finial on the spire. Thomas Turnbull was
requested to supervise this work.
~ A photograph of the Church in 188515 shows only one

entrance. However when the church was photographed for
the .Diamond Jubilee celebrations 1n 1913,16  there are
clearly two entrance doors. There is no spe01f10 reference
to this alteration in the Church records but there is a
letter to the Town . Clerk ‘dated 1,7, ﬂ90417 about certaln
alterations to the church and schoolroom. Furthermore,
 the Annual Report for 1G04 referred to alterations which ™™
were made necessary by the City Coun01l's regulations for better
egress from public bulldlngs in the case of flre or . panlc. ' |
The work cost over £200. : : |

In 1920, as a memorial to the dead of World War I, Hon.
- de.G.W, Altken_dgggyed two memorial w1ndows at the south end -
of the church'ebeve.the'organ. These w1ndows deplct Jesus
w1th a lamb and Jdesus with a child, 18 : . :
| ' Hon. J.G.W. Aitken, who died in 4921 was the first
1a§man to be moderator of the Presbyterian Church in New
Zealand and as a memorial to him, three stained glass W1naows
. were . installed at the northern end of the church. The
wlndows depict the story of the Good Samarltan.'_ They were
.-dedlcated in 15.7. 1923 19and the stalned glass relnforced
in November 1946. _ : : : _

In 1935, as a memorlal to the Se351on Glerk ¥.De Menelaus,'
an oak commurion table was built .for the church. The oak,
which was imported from England, was constructed by Alexander .
Martin from a design by Gray Young.20 The carving was done
by C. Styles of VWellington,

- A% the same time a lectern was built by Alexander

‘Martin as a memorial to Alexander ﬂopklrk.z1 o

In 1953, to mark the centennisl celebrations of the
chureh,it was decided to use moneys bequeathed by Mrs Grace
Meuli to build a memorial porch. - A tender for the work from
Webb and Cree for £1382. 10 was accepted and the work putb in
hand. ez The architect was Malcolm Bennie, ' The porch was
erected in timber and re-used many of the existing ornaments?5°
'_At the same time memorlal windows representlng the contribution
made by the women of St John's were installed in the veutlbule.
These windows show a woman washlng Jesus' feet and the women

‘at the empty tombs i.e. service and éevotlon.'g4



4,
Windows in the memorial porch show St John the Apostle and 5%
Johﬁ the L&ptLSto

in 1954 the church heating was completely renewed and all
windows reglazed at a cost of 2448, The cabbage trees along the
eastern boundaﬁy with Willis Street were cut down and replaced
bty pobutukawaso _

The wooden P¢lem under the steeple were rep;aced in 1957
and mork begun on replllng the Church. This was comp1eted in
’1958° Some borer treatment had to be carried out at this time.

~In 1959 the dark stain was removed from the pews which are
now their origiral 'kauri’ colours . By 1960 the windows of. the
church had.been.reglazed and the memorial windows in the front
vestibule completed During this year a Bullding Fund was
established to provide for the eventual replacement of some of
the wooden buildings.-

‘ A window tc the memory of Alexander and Sarah Martin was
constructed in 1965 in the west wi ing of the church vestibule.
The window depicts a carpenter at work with his tools of trade.
Alexanaer hartln built the oak communion table and the oak,lectern,
the lenelaus end Hopkirk memorials.

As a result of the Wahine. storm in Aprll 1968 the church
steeple suffered afracture and remedisl work had to be earrleﬂ
out. In the same year, infra red heaters were installed'in'the_
church. The next year a vehicular eptrance from Dixon Street
Was_providedﬁ In 1970 the pews in the lower level of the church
were chshioned. | o |



_ .ocial Irvortance: 7
When St John's was built for the third time, the Te Aro

area was the commercial centre of Wellington.  The church

" reflects the- erpandlng prosperity of the early Wellington

-businessmens Thelr early struggles were ‘mirrored in the small
" first churc¢h. With the entrenchment of their business interests
'_eeme'the'second church which was much more substantia1025' By
the 1880's these businesses were so well established that the.
congregation of S5t John s was able to commission mhomas murrbull

to design the present, impressive structure.

Although faced with the continuous problem of populatlon
- movement to the outer suburbs, St John's has remained the place .
of worship for many families who- have a long association with
the Church.  4s well as commercially prominent families such
as those of James Smith (who still ‘belong to the ehurch), R,
Hannah and John Klrkcaldle, St John's was the church chosen by
- many publlc servants. The Young Mens' Bible Class founded by
- Sir George Troup attracted many Government cadets and over the
'ryears those who worked 1n uelllngton tended to remain church
members. , RS '
_  ‘The church is a prosperous one. Tn'1897 a Vieitation
- committee called it "wealthy and prosperous 26' In 1911 the
commitbtee wrote that 5% Jonn's affalrs were" healthy and eatlsfact—

Oy There were 700 members on the communion:- roll whlle attendance

at public worship reached 1,000, 'Seven Bible Classes were in
ocperation. These. were the peak years for church attendance,

when Dr Gibb was mlnlster and there was even some talk of enlarging

~the church because the seatlng accommodation of 800 was inadegqusa +e.'

But the same enthusiastic committee also noted that there was

2 grav1tat10n of members towards the suburbs which was reflected.
in the decllning numbers of children attendlng Sunday School. .
‘Thls outward spread of Wellington's population had led to the
formation of ?resbyterlan Churches by St John's meumbers in
Newtown, 1880, Brooklyn 1904, and Kelburn, 1908.

St John's played a 51gn1f1cant part in the soc1al structure-
of early Wellington, = For the middle classes its schoolroom was
a venue for concerts, meetings, educational getherings, district
socials, evangelical services, temperance gatherings, debates
and literary groups. In the 1890's there was even a football
tean whleh used the hall for practice on Wednesday even1ngs°27

Before a tea meetlng to ralse:bulldlng funds in December, 1885



the Secretary of the Management Committee wrote to the Police
”“askiﬂg for a bonstable to be present because "Last year a gang of
larrikins from Quin Street gave a great deal of annoyance and -
stole a quantlty of articles belonglnc to the caterer.“28
Thls indicates that alt wough St John's was prosperous, it was in
an area where there were people in the poorer socio-economic groups.
By the 1880's the congregaticon was taking an active interest in
the children 0. these families. ~ J.G.W. Aitken and W. 4llan
organised. classes for the boys of poor families and thls became
the Boys' Imnstitute. St John's ran the Instluute for manf—ygmrs
and the Y.M.B.C. raised morey.for-# building which was opened
in 1907. The first secretary, Carl Colemus was appointed'ands
paid by the St John's session. |

During the same time, the women in the congregation became
involved in schemes of practical aid for those in need in the'
':parlshn The Dorcas s and Visiting Society was formed to prov1de

-_'garments for the elderly, orphans and the children of the poora

- In 1892, when a former church member died in pover+y, the Soc;ery

 raised a subscription for his famlly s needs and invested a sum
of money for them.29 In 1895, the Soclety asked Session for

_ "pecunlary assistance", the money to be used for the poor of the

. congregation. - .This was happening at a time when St Jobn_s_was_
'8till in debt because of 1ts new buildings.- i .
B In 1902, these women asked Session to app01nt a oaid fenale
| mi531onary to help people in the area, They undertook to collect’
£50 of her yearly salary 1if the church would finance the other 40,
In 1904, the Session gave permission for the Dorcas 3001ety to.
use funds %o assist the needy outside the congregation and the
first female missionary or deaconess, Miss Lilian Lang, was | _
app01nted in 1905. She was followed by two further deaconesées
but when Miss Nora Dick resigned in 1915 there was a lapse of |
_thirty'years-before Miss Nessie lorgan's appbintment in 1945°

She filled the position between 1945-1949 and 1951~ 1959. _There
is no deaconess at the present time,

The Mothers' Club was founded by lMiss Lang in 1806 %o help
the mothers of poorer boys, especially those who belonged to the
Boys' Institute. During the 1920's and the depression of the
19%0's this group was particularly active.” 20 They met fortnlvhtly
and mothers could purchase cheap second-hand clothes at reasonable
prices; During the depression of the 193C's this work was widened
to include other members of the.congregationo An inter-church .

committee was set up to work with the Mayor's Relief Fund for



for the needy of the'Te'Aro flat area.' The Women's Essociation
and the Bible (lasses assisted with the distribution of relief.
- One.member of the ccngfegation bought two pai:s of boots which

~ he asked to be given to someone'in_need.Bq There were aiso
many sales of work. | : ' ‘

The Mothers' Club folded up in 1942 when the women in the
church became preoccupied with knitting for soldlers and 1ater,'
collecting food parcels for Britain and. “urope.

Although the sorts of needs catered for by the act1v1t1es
of the &t uohn s women in these early organlsatlons are Nows
covered by the Welfare State, the annwal accounts for 1968-69
include a "Fund for Special Family Assistance", one item being
"flool for cardigans". | | |

Church members now concentrate on providing community
services for the inner city area. _‘plubs aimed at helping
the elderly “and @EEDyoung have been-run for almost twenty years.
"Saturday Night at Eight" is a club_for the elderly while the .
Sﬁnday Afternoon Club provides a meetirg place'for young pebylé
away from home. . In 1968 the younger members of the comgregat— _
flon began a club- for lonely, elderly people at two o'clock
on Saturday afternoons. Troup House, which 1nﬂludes Splnhs
Cottage, prcv1des hostel accommodatlon for young men who come
to Welllngton to stuay or work. ' '
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Historical Impor*ance-

5t John's reflects hlstorlcally the inner clty area wnere
it was dbuilt. The names on the memorial tablets on the walls
are those of men well known in early Wellington - the Kirkcaldie
family, James Smith and his son A.P. Smith, William Hopkirk,
Sir George Troup. o : |

S5t John's has not been assoc1ated Wlth any great hlstor cal.
event, although in December, 4,18 it was used as. an emergercy
hospital for  two WGQKS during the 1nf1uenza epidemic. uerv1ces
‘went on as usual - in the Towp Hall. :

During the late 1920's and early 1930's, when J.R. it
Blanchard WaS mlnlster, the church enjoyed a measure of

vice- regal and government patronaae, - Eon. J.G. Coates was a
member of the congregation and his w1fe-eften:openea sales of
work., In 1925 there was a service to mark the opening of
Parliament and these continued i 1931, 1932, 1933 and 1934, _
At the 1934 service the lesson was read by the Governor—General_
.and the 'Dominion' reported that mlSS ‘Jean Batten was also
_present, together with the Prime henlster, Mir Forbes, and the
Hon. J.G. Coates.52 ' The same paper reported the attendance
_ef'the vaernor—@eneral at a service in 1926, From 1929 until -
the late 1030 s the evening service from 5t John's_was broadcast
'every eight weeks. . . SR o '
' ‘The members of St John S have not been famous but many have
~ been well-known.  The Hon. J.G. Coates was not the only
' politician to belong to St John's. Fon: J.G.U. Aitken was a
fpromlnent member in the early part of the century and the
Present Leader of the Opposition, hono-J R, Narshall hds Deen
_.an elder since 1950, _ _ |

The business families like the Kirkcaldies and James Smith
(founders of these firms both being directors of the Manawatu -
Railway Co.), Valter Turnbull, father of Alexander Turnbull who
lived near the Kirkcaldies in the select area of Upper Willis
- Street and R. Hannah were all church members. 'Although Robert '
- Hannah lived at Khandal%;h he came to £t John's eacheSunday.'
‘health, being carried. up Dixon Street ezch Suﬂday morning by
two retainers. L

& present church member”” remembers Lir Zannah, theh in ailinT

There were Well-knownePublic Servants £00, ~James LicKerrow,
a former head of the Lands and Sﬂrvey.Departmentg Walter Reid,
Solicitor-General; A.D. Howitt, Chief Draughtsman for the
New. Zealand Railways; N.S. woods,,Secretary‘for Labour; T.E.



Gill, Chief Inspector of Secondary Schools; . Gray, Principal
of Wellington Teachers' Training College in the early years
of the 20tk century and Captain Johnson, Harbourmaster about
the same time.

The part owner of Wellington's first independent newspaper,
T.%W. McKenzie, was an elderof S8t Jobn's for many years. Two -
Mayors of Wellington were among the more prominent of 5t John's
members, Hopn. J.G.W. Aitken, layor from 1804-02 snd a founder
of the Boys' Institute. 4&nd Sir George Troup, founder of
the Young ilen's Bible Class and layor from 1027-31, best _g
remernbéred in Wellington. for thse Carillon and his efports ﬁo
have the Domihion Museum establishede

The Ministers of St John's often took a leading part

in COmmuhity affairs and often tried to influence parliapentary
_thlnklng on cer@ggg issues. - Although there is'a.street '
‘named for hlm,5 the Rev, John Moir had little time to spare
for community 1nterests as his term as_?lrs+ ninister was
a difficult one due to dlSSéDSlOn arong the. members._

" However, as the population of Wellington began to grow
and the members of St John's began to be more prosperous, the
- second Ministef; Rev.‘JameS'Patersoﬁ, was able to give nore
 time to public affsirs. Like his predecessor, James Faterson -
came from Scotland. . In his diary he records his first meeting
with his congregation 1n 1868 and found them "a highly respect-
able congregation - generslly llberal“af' He became a Fellow
of the University of New Zealand, & member of the Wellington
Fducation Board and a member of the Board of Governors of
Wellington College. - In 1896 he strongly supported Bible _
readings in Schools and urged his congregation to vote "Yegh
36 In 1899 he wes urging them to
vote "Prchibition" at the local option poll because of the
"great evils arising out of the drink tr aff&c"?7 In 1002
a letter was sent to the approprlate aut orities protesting
against the running of trains, trams and steamers on Sundays
In 1904 after his retirement, Crump Street was reramed Paterson
Street in his honovraf‘

. Dr Gibb, his successor, was one of the more famous. Pres*y-
' tsrian ministers in New Zealsnd and becane almost a legend in

- at a pational referendun.

28

his own lifetime. He was'inqtru;ehtal in founding Queen
kargaret's and Scots vOLlegeS &5 well as an oryhanage for
children in 4e111ngtona
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During his ministry the pulpit was drs ped in black to mark the
deatn of Richard John Seddon. In 1912 Dr Gibb sent a letter
of protest to the Minister of Defence over. the Sunday parade
at Trentham, especlally "target finding" and recelved a promfﬁ
and sabtisfactory answer. :
In April 1913 the city was canvassed in support of a nation-
wide petition for Bible in Mchools. A petltlon containing the
 signatures of 133,000 people was presented to the Government.
in May, 4,445. Letters were sent to the Government in 1616
-supporving the six o tclock closing and urging a mere rigorous
inspection of films because of the film "Intolerance" In
1918 the government was written to about liguor SQles and
the closure of public houses during the'-I-’eac:e'Celebx‘aﬁ:ioms.L-VI
After the'war, Lr Glbb s publlc interests were centéered in the
| League of ﬁatlona. _ _ - _ ; o
o The fourth hlnlster, ¥r Bl aﬁchard,'tobk a ‘keen interest
in'public affairs. . During hlslministry,'the Prime_minister
‘was approached'about'gambling, free kindergartens (a petition
for which was placed in the church,, unemp103ment and temperance.
Mr Blanchard was Dominion preqldent of the New Zealand Alliance.
Later Ministers Qontlnued the;r 1nterest in publlc affairs..
The present Minister, D.T.W. Kinloch listed his outside interests
in “the Annual QePOrt'for 1970‘-'“Scots'Ccllege Board of Goverpors,
" Hon. President of the Boysd Instltute, Vlctorla House VWomen's
Hostel Committee, Fational oclety on Alccholism, Internatlonal-:
Relatlons Committee and the Inner Clty Commlttee, among. others.”
_ Thesenlnterests are not very different from those of the
fMiniéter_when the present church'was.built;'Rev;'Jémés_Paterson.



Architectural Importance:

Architecturally, 5t Jobn's is a. good exanple of Thomas -
"Turnbull's gothic style seen to the best advantage in the
General Assembly Library. In "Architecture in New Zealand,

- 1920-1970! tacpoole and @Saveﬁ describe it as "blgger, more"
assured and better sited" than St Peter's d951gned by Turnbull
five years earller.45 _

It is also & good example of the workmanship of James
‘Wilson the early Wellington builder who built the recently
'demo?ished Chief Fost Office%4 Wilson was for many years an
 elder of St John's. : L | -

Althoubh St Peter's looks 51mllar,'ut John's is qulte
unlqueo The Jubilee Souvenlr Booklet 1913 4o page 19 sajs
. that because it was built of wood it was "less imposing than
some of the churches in the South, yet probably the finest of
its kind in the Dominion.™ _ .

The orlglnal kauri exterior is well 1ooked after and
-~ the interior is in excellent COﬂdlthBo :
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Conclusions ard Recommendations: _ :
St Jehn's is classified as Class B. It has a communion

roll of over 400 and the excellent condition of the church -
shows that the congregation regard it with some pride.  There
seems ‘little likelihood of its being demolished. The land is
exenrpbted from Sectlon 11%7 of the Publlc works Act 1908047

. én ambltlous scheme was approved in principle by the helllng-
ton Citvy Council in 106¢. This called for the replacemept
of the. present Sunday uChOOl and Bible Class bulldlngs with

a five- storeyed'bommurlty centre" type building. It was
not proposed to demolish the churcn but the cottagé, known
..as oplnks Cottaée, which is part of the Troup House hostel _

- would have to be derwolished to make way for the new “building.:

A report on the cottage is attached as a separate Appendlx T. .

It is a well—preserved -example of early Yiellington domestic
archltecture and has some historicsl interest. '

It is recommended that the present 013551flcat10n on
 St Johns_stand and that Spinks Cottage be c13551f;ed as Class 1D,

[
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Sources and Qeferences.

The Free Church of Scotland which founded the Ctago Settlement
broke away from the Church of Scotland in 1843, They were no%
reunited again until 19C0. The issue at stake was the appointment

of ministers agzinst the wishes of the copgregation.  The rree

Church malntalned its right to select mlnlsters.

"SQSSlOn-BOOK 1854-1911 Nicrofilm. - Alexander Turnbull Litrary
- Copy of Land Transfer Office Deed attached as Appenaix'l.

'Phoﬁograph of first church with enlargements about 1866

attached - A.T. Llorary.

Photbgraph of flrst church with enlargements about 1866 -

Authorised by Congregatlonel Yeeting Sept. 18?5, Managers Letter-
book 1854-1Q11 mlcrofllm AT, lerary :

o Management Commlttee report 1875. Copy held by R, Fow;er Karorl

Evening Post_9. 5~a&84 AT, lerary, see Appendix attached

‘Hearsay - R. B. Fowler; Karorl.

- See Anpendlx attached.

Evenlng Post Report - Appendlx attached.. A.T. Litrary

' Evenlng Post Report - v : oo

_ T"’a:aagement Book 1854 1911 zicrofllm A T.L.

managers' Letterbook 1902 held in ohurch safeo

end 16. Photographs - courtesy nlexander Turnbull lerary.

Menavers Tetterbook - Church safen No record -in City Councll
records, which start in 1929.

BExtract from Lanagement Comm1t+ee report 1920 - church safe.

Annual Report 19230 -Copy attaohed as Appendix. Origlnal church -

- safe,

Evening Post and Domlnlon reports -~ Alexander murnbull lerdry
Coples attached as appendlces.

~Session hlnutes,.church safe.

"o Y 1t n
City Council records 7/195%
Annual Report 4953/54, church safe.

The names of the Vortgage documents. were obtained from L.T.
Offlce records -and are included as a separate Appendlx.

Session Minute Book 1954—4941 Mierofilm. ~ A.T.L.
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47,

- obtain second-hand ciothing at nominal prices."

14,

lapagers' Letterbook 1896, Letter to Secretary St Jokn's
Football Club omola nts have been made in the past with
regard to damage to the buildings. As the weekly prayer
reeting 1is also held on a %Yednesday, there is to be no noise

before & EDp‘m "

Managers'! Letterbook, 4885, hlorofllm, A.P.Library.
Session 1nate Book 18%82. - B

Apnual Report 1024~¢5 "Indigent mothers Cone from far and near to

"Liothers come
from as far afield as Lyall Bay, Brooklyn Hataitai and lsland
Bay™ Annual Report 1026-27 church safe.

Session Minutes 19%2 (church safe) " Corkhlll purchased two.
pair of boots for a deserving case." : .

"Dominion", 2.7.34, ﬂ.m. Library
Hr-N Flemlng, member 0f the Board of Managers

IrV1ne Smith "Qtreets of my Clty" 1048

-Dlary of James Paterson 1868. M1crof11m AT, lerary. Journal

of voyage of "Ballarat". ther copies of his &1arles held by
R.B. Fowler, Karorl. : : _

Se851on Minutes, 1898. 'A.T,L;'
a . n 1899 "o

"Streets of ¥ Ciﬁj" Irvine Smith
| ot . _

Session Winute Book 1912. Church safe. The Minister of = -
Defence replled in Jan. 1913 "Regulations on the subject will
shortly be issued which w1ll I trast be- sathfactory to. you."

Session Ninube Book,_1046 1918,

Stacpoole and Beaven page 42, plate %1,

Cyclopedia of Hew Zealand, 1895, lists bulldﬂnrs designed by

Thomas Turnbull as: Fost and ”eleérabh Of?lce, School of
flesign and Cffices of fducation Board; 3Bellamys and the -
corrider connecting therewith; City Council Offices; CSouth

‘British Insurance;. Colonial Insurance Coy; 5%t John's; St Peter!

S5t Fatrick's College, Wellington; John Suthies: Hannah's
factory and retail shops; Te iro House (James Smith's shop) -
Wellington toollen kKills at Fetone and Gear lleat works.

Newspaper cutting - Evening Post 11.5.74. ittached as appendix.'

The original plans and specifications are missing. There is

no trace of Them at the-Church.. It could e that Turnbull
kept them. - '

Jubilee Booklet attached.' Also Cente ial Booklet 1953 attachec

Certificate of Title attached. nppendlx_IV}



CAFPENDIX I ~ STINKS COTTAGE.

This is a two-storeyed weatherboard bu11&1n¢ nOW'serv¢ng'
as part of Troup House, a hostel for young men.

According to "Early Wellington" by Louis E. Ward (1928),
e Spinks.camé to Wellington in 1842 on the "Ursula'. He
was elected a vice President of,tne-kechanlcs-Institute in
184% and was the first wharfinger on Queens Wharfo' He is on '
record as a resident of Willis Street in 1863, The L.T.
Office deed (attached as an appenolx) sShows Splnks as co—-u o
| “purchaser of lot 168 in 1854 so the cottage was bullt between
this date and 1865, The chimney of the cottage can be seen
in the attached photo df the flrst churoh and addltlons, dated
about 1866, -

Both Ward and Irvine Smith in "Streets of y"01ty
1948 mentlon that Spinks ran a store for some time and that

'_.the leses Splnks ran a prlvate school from: 184G. to 1879°

"The Misses upleS kept. a school first in Dixon Street and
1ater_1n Willis Street, in a house still standlng behind St .
John's Church" (Irvine Smith)e. The book also mentlons that
‘this private school was one of the longest lastlng ones 1n
'early wellington. ' ' : T : |
In 1884, the land and cottage were bought by St John‘s for-
£1,500. . The cottago was moved back_to its present site to_ |
‘accommodate the larger church building and it'was*used as”a )
caretaker's residence until 1067 when it was renovated and
made an extenblon of Troup Pouse. '
liinor renovations were made throughout the years ‘but the
__most maaor work done was in 1954 when .a- contract was - let to
' Pavitt and Walker for. llftlng, replling and renewal of the -
- cottage's foundation timbers._ - In November 1954 the care- -
taker reported that the work. had caused the chimney to crack -
and this was repaired. Prior to re-piling, the Clt} Emg;neer_-
had been asked to report on the condition of the cottage. 4
report from N.C. Haig was rece¢ved but neither the church or
City Council records have a copy. The Session minutes
merely record that uhere was a report which said that the
'cottage had a life of 20-25 years if the piles were renewed.
The cottage is a Well—preserved example of early welllngtor
'domeotlc archltecture and should be recorded because of its
:assoczatlon dlth education in Wellingbon and its long assoc~

- dation with 5t ‘Jokn's.

?hotosfare abtbached.



APPENDIY V — EXTRACT FROM "EVENTNG POST" 9.5.1884.

"The flemes leaped through the windows of the sacred edifice

‘and licked the sides of the building fanned by a. strong
southerlyo"

. There was a crowd of between two. and three thousand.

When the spire srashed into Dlxon Street, the store opposite
caugnt flre.

bottle was founa in the founiatlon stone and in it

was a Cory of the "Evening Post" and the "Tribune", the

—=gly )
" Church's énnual Reports .and some coins.



AFPENDIY VI, -

EYTRACT FROY K.Z. DATIY ILIL : 14.12.1885

Architecture: Tecorative Gothic.

Tower: 168 feet high | - : - _ _
Length: 112 ?eet-' nidth: 52 feet; lleight of ceiling 35 feet}
Top of Spire: 155 feet. o | L
Cblong shape but seats concentrlc from pulpit. Auditorium

7 feet in length. - 20 seats in centre and 21 at- elther side.
%ill seat 540 peopie. Gallery will seat 240 people. .
Orgen Chamber: rocm for 60 choristers in addition to brganiéts.
Committee room: 716 x 17 feet; Vestry: 17 x 10 feet; '
Engine room 17 x 10 feeb; Organ'éhamber.19_x 26 feet;
Vestlbule 64 x 12 feet. |

Floor of auditorium gradually Trises from the pulpit. towards -
‘the door of the vestlbule, the last SEat being. 2 feet higher
than the first. _ ,

Gallery: & portion of whlch is lelded frcm the main body f_'
the Church by : an eliptic. arch and organ loft corr63pondﬂng at
“the other end and is supyorted by eleven iron plllars_
Height © feet. ' ' o

There are six Wln&ows at each 31d@ with a grouplng of ‘windows

- over the gallerys . There are two smaller w1naows over the -
organ chamber, - ' ' y e
Gaslights: 22 wall brackets - 5 hall lights, 3 béautiful.'
~coronas in burnished brass % - © 1nchesrln dlameter, gach with
36 lights suspended from the ceiling. | |

4 stands of lights each having four burners.

Pulpit: 5 foot 3 inches from the floor.

28 inlet ventilators a modification of the Teobin pr1n01ﬁle
introduced by the Architect.

Seven Boyles self activating ventilators in the celllng to
car:y away stale air. _
The Panellings are painted celestial blue. The moulded ribs
and panel framings are picked out in different shades of .
‘salmon colourlng whlle the Walls are a upiform bright salmon
colour. - '



APPENDIX VII.

‘Rev. Paterson organised St John's very throughly. From
4870 be drew up. & list of districts for which each elder was
responsible., The extent of those districts gives an idea of
the area.ovef_wnlch St John's exercised a spiritual influence.
| A Tevised list in 1884~reads_as:follqws:—

I. Kaiwarra, Tinakori R4, Thorndon to Woodward Street - Mr Young

II. Ghuznee Street,.Wodgombe Street, Upper Willis Street, .o
Polhills Gully, ﬁairn treet to Cuba Street - ir ‘addell

ITI. Foodward Street, Ghaznee Street, The Terrace, Lambton %uay,
' Boulcott Street, Willis Street to Ghuznee Street -'Er
McKerrow. '

v, Cuba Street and streets 1nterven1ng to Taranakl Street and
o Hopper btreet - kr uames omith. _

V. Manners, Dixon Streets, maranaki Place and Courtenay Place -
kir Fraser.

VI. , Taranaki - treet and Tory Street W1th streets 1nterven1ng,
- .also streets between Tory Street and Cambrldge Terrace to -
-Buckle Street - M ﬁopklrk ' _ : _
Vil. hargorlbanks Street and Orlental Bay - ¥r Rohérfson.

VIII; From XMarjoribanks Street to Sussex Square and Ellis Street.
o From Caxzbridge Terrace to Nt Vlctoria - Kr L cLean° :

.” Xu Hewtown,?ogeltomn and Patent Sllp - Mr R. Hopklrk.
| In 1884, it was proposed that elders meet vessels, WSlCOmn

'Presbyterlans, invite then to Church and "endeavour to:direct =
them to respectable lodgings."  Session Minutes - 1884.

* Church started at Newtownby Mr R. Hopkirk 1880 recoonlsed
as a separate preaching station lay 18829



APPENDIX VIITI.

IS

Extract from the Seventieth Annual Report, July 1922 - June 1923.

v Memorial Tindow to the Late John G.7.. Aitken

This memorial, occupying all the windew space in the
northern end of the Church Was'dédicated_on 15 July.  The
window was unveiled by Miss Aitkeﬁ'ana Vrg Day, nieces of
¥r Litken and by kessrs Hopkirk, Troup and M.D. Menelaus....

The window was constructed by “essrs Smith and Smith
of Dunedin under the dlrectlon of ¥r John V. Brock, artlsto-
It is original in design and a very fine piece of work.

The centre portlon is 17 feet in helght and five feet in
breadth and the two side portions are each 14 feet 1n helght
by 2 foot 4 inches 1n breadth. o .

| " On the left*is a panel dppicting the attack of the
thieves on the man on his way from Jerusalem to Jerlchoe

Thls panel is- full of rich, low tone colouring and accurately
portrays the scene in a lonely part of the highway. mhls :
is a fine plcturlsatlon of the Good amarltan a351st1ng '
the unfortunate man who has been 1ngured. Ly ,

' - Extendlnw from the back 4s the roadway on whlch the -
Priest and_the Levite are passing by. Away in the d;stahce_
is a viliage.set"as;a jewel in the mountains with the sunset

 sky beyond, the whole being filléd by the lumindsity of the

-dylng day. o | . ' S _
| -On the right is a picture show1ng the interior of the inpn
where the Good Samaritan is in the act of pawlng the two pence'.'
for the care of the stranger n '



APPEMDIY IX,

MENFLAUE LZLCRIAL,

Extract from Evening Fost 20.41.35,

"The table is now comnleted and Wlil be dedlcated at the
morning Service next qUdeyo In de51bn it is based on the
decorative period of Gothic architecture and is- builg of
'sPecially Selected-and beautifully figured Engliéh oak.
The capplng mould is an oveclo mould which bears a

carving of wheat ear and grape vine 'representlng the elemen 8
‘of bread ard wine set apart at Holy Communion for that "holy
use and mystery". - Gn a frieze below the capping mould,

in Gothic letterlﬁa‘plckea out in brdnzed'gilt has been
incised the text . "Behold the Lamb of God which taketh away
+the sin of the world." : o

. Nine panels in the front and two at each end of the L
' table are richly decorated with tracery and in the centre :f
- panel have been incised the letters 'I. H.D.“. a widely used"
 monogran of the primitive church representlng the sacred
name Of Jesus. In the style of the old cathedrals, the _
 table has been finished with a wax 11n1sh whlch will darken
:with tlme 1nto a warmly rich brown hue° ' . j '

The table was designed by IMNr sray Young of Cray Young,
ikorton and Young, architects and closely adheres to the type -
‘prevalent 1n Presbyterian churches in bcotland and Ingland.
It was built by Mr Alex Martin and the carv1ng Was . executed '
by ¥r C. Styles of uelllngton " ' ' '

-NéwsPaper Photo 20.11.35. AT L.

thract from Bomlnlon 25.11.35:
A side chair for the commupion ﬁable was dedlcated

to Alexander EOpklrk. A second side chair was dedicated to -
the memory of William 4llan” - gift of his fawily.

"The central chair was dedicated to latthew D. Fenelaus and
was the gift of his sister, lrs Younv of Port Chalmers.”

Dcminion,' 30.11.%5: _ :

- "The chairs are built of ‘the same oak and bear the same.
finish as the communiorn table. The backs are pane_leé and
richly decorated with tracery surmcunted by & circle in which

there sre distinctive carvings. The carving on the ceunbral



APPENDIZ I (Contd.) ' 2

chair is that of the burning bush with the motto "Fec tamen
consumébatun", the symbol of the Presbybterian church in every |
country &f the world where it has been found., The carving
of the side chairs is a modification of the wheat ear and
grape vine which is on the table." o |
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AYPENDIY X

' GROVING PROSPERITY OF CHURCH MENBERS.

Names of churcn_trusteeS'on.485k and 1861 Deedg:

Kichael Yuin - Farrier
James TWallace - Grocer

~ John McLaggan - Builder.

James Quirk - Draper
William Waring-Taylor - Merchant

Kames of church trustees on 1876 ; ortgage Deed

V. Smith - Clerk JUlr - Her. Majesty's Customs

Walter Reid - Solicitor General_
Laing - Yrinter '

McLean - Builder
T.W. licKenzie - Printer
Robertson - Engineer

- Sloarn - Tailor ' father)
. Whitehouse - Grocer - Gray -(Clerk)
'J. Kirkcaldie - DIraper ~Taylor (Clérk) o
McDonald - Clerk ~ lMcDonald (Accountant)

Rennie - Accountant_

The 1887 Mortgage fd'finaﬁcé the cost of the mew church and

purchase of uplnks' land pames as property trustees

'Robert Greenfield, Timber merchant

Thomas mcKen21e, Settler

- James Smith, Merchant

- The - Hortgage of £2,200 was to James Barry and Wllllam thonald
_(Bullger) Securlty takﬁn over lYanse which was 1ot 458

- Woolcombe treeto

On ,.2 1900 the uortgage wWas reflnanced Wlth the ‘Public Trust,

- 81300 at 6 % reducible to 4%.

.At a special collectlon at the Jubllee services in December 1015

enough was collected to pay off the outstandlng mortgage of
£1,300 on the churuu._ -

The question of repairs was always a worrying one but in 1930
the Ireasurer, Mr R. Fleming made provision for further repairs
and mainvensnce by .buying shares in the ligtropolitan Building

‘Society. Ln Endowment Fund was started im 1931. By 1955 ther

was £10,000 in this Fund., In 1951 a valuation of £50,000 was

B

Walter Turnbull - kerchant (Alexander :



o

- Appendix X (Contd.) 2.,

placed on the buildings (Session Minute Book 12.51). The
1972 Annual Report shows & suw of $20,000 in the Endowment
Fund and $13,467 in the Hall rebuilding fund.



APPENDIY XT.

Extract from “Evening Post", 14,12.55.

“"Flft“ Years }go - A Shlnlng Example.

"The Tresbyterians are nelither exceptlonallv wealthy nor,

. as compared with other denomlnatlons, extremely numerous.

They consist, of course, prlnclpally cf Scotchmen ﬂnd‘genﬁﬁumen
of that nationality aré not’ poﬁﬁlarly credited with reckless_
prodlgallty.__That in a good cause, however, they are wllllng

- to contribute most freely and liberally, lr James Smith showed
- last nigit” 14.12.1885. | - 5

,._. . _

-It was necessary to raise another mortgaée in 1887 Details
~in Appendlx X o - |



LPPERNDIX XTIT

OTHER CHURCH BUILDINGS.

1, OrlﬁlnaW Sunday School Building built 1884, wooden,
Thomas Turnbull. S

2e Blble Class, Gymnasium and extension to choolrooms,~_1902 -
' : Tursbull _ o _ _ :
. Troup House Ixtension to Y,¥.3.C. rooms at rear of “hurch
' Flnanced from sale of St Jokn 's Hostel, Yiilliis utreet
1056 apd funds from Troup famlly. Cost Z4,0C00.
dIChlteCt Gray Young. R

. ¥inisters of St Johnfs:

John Moir = . 1853-1867

‘James Paterson 1868-1903%
James Gibb = 1903-1926

J.R. Blanchard 1927~1939

“P. Gladstone Hughes 1940-1947
William Temple 1948-195 |
J. Kingsley Fairbairn 1957-1968
D.T.¥. Kinloch 1969 - o

St John's, Wellinghton. o L

. Photographs supplied with
- report on photegresph file -

Nos. 2858-%£53



